
BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL

TOWN HALL
DUKE STREET

BARROW-IN-FURNESS

Monday 13th January, 2020

To expedite the business of the meeting, Members are requested to give the 
Executive Director adequate notice of any Amendment which they propose to raise.

To:   The Members of Barrow Borough Council

Mr Mayor, Ladies and Gentlemen

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL to be 

held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER at the TOWN HALL, BARROW on TUESDAY, 21ST 

JANUARY, 2020 COMMENCING AT 5.30 PM for the transaction of the business specified 

below:

Chief Executive 
_______________

Prior to the business of the meeting, Prayers will be offered.

Business

1.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in respect of 
items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and transparency, 
to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable pecuniary interests 
which they have already declared in the Register,  as well as any other registrable 
or other interests.  



2.  MINUTES

To confirm the Minutes of the Council's proceedings held on 15th October and the 
Extraordinary meeting held on 12th November 2019.

3.  TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

4.  LIST OF ENGAGEMENTS CARRIED OUT BY THE MAYOR AND DEPUTY 
MAYOR

A list of the engagements carried out by the Mayor and Deputy Mayor between 
October 2019 and January 2020 had been submitted for information and noted.

5.  ANNOUNCEMENTS

To receive any announcements from the Chairman, Leader or Head of Paid 
Services.

6.  QUESTION BY A MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC

Mr Broddie to ask the following question:-

I would like to ask the Council about how information of discretionary housing 
payments, may not be being passed on to council tenants.

7.  THE COUNCIL PLAN 2020-2024  

8.  PROTOCOL FOR THE AWARD OF THE FREEDOM OF THE BOROUGH  

9.  HEAD OF LEGAL & GOVERNANCE AND MONITORING OFFICER  

10.  (A) TO RECEIVE REPORTS FROM THE FOLLOWING COMMITTEES AND 
CONSIDER RECOMMENDATIONS:-

(1) Planning 
(2) Licensing Regulatory 
(3) Licensing 
(4) Executive 
(5) Audit 
(6) Overview and Scrutiny 

(B) QUESTIONS TO THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

Council has agreed that time be set aside for questions to the Leader of the 
Council.

Standing Order 10.2 and 10.4 set out the procedure for questions to the Leader 
and the notice period required.

The Leader will also take and questions without notice relevant to the reports and 
minutes detailed on the agenda.



11.  NOTICE OF MOTION UNDER RULE 11

To consider the following motion signed by Councillors M A Thomson and Brook:-

That this Council will support and sign the Cooperative Party Charter Against 
Modern Slavery and it will promote awareness of Modern Day Slavery amongst 
our residents and work with Officers to support survivors, as follows:
 
"Charter Against Modern Slavery 
 
Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council will:

1. Train its corporate procurement team to understand modern slavery through 
the Chartered Institute of Procurement and Supply’s (CIPS) online course on 
Ethical Procurement and Supply.

2. Require its contractors to comply fully with the Modern Slavery Act 2015, 
wherever it applies, with contract termination as a potential sanction for non-
compliance. 

3. Challenge any abnormally low-cost tenders to ensure they do not rely upon 
the potential contractor practising modern slavery. 

4. Highlight to its suppliers that contracted workers are free to join a trade union 
and are not to be treated unfairly for belonging to one. 

5. Publicise its whistle-blowing system for staff to blow the whistle on any 
suspected examples of modern slavery. 

6. Require its tendered contractors to adopt a whistle-blowing policy which 
enables their staff to blow the whistle on any suspected examples of modern 
slavery. 

7. Review its contractual spending regularly to identify any potential issues with 
modern slavery. 

8. Highlight for its suppliers any risks identified concerning modern slavery and 
refer them to the relevant agencies to be addressed. 

9. Refer for investigation via the National Crime Agency’s national referral 
mechanism any of its contractors identified as a cause for concern regarding 
modern slavery. 

10. Report publicly on the implementation of this policy annually."

12.  NOTICE OF MOTION UNDER RULE 11

To consider the following motion signed by Councillors Mooney and Preston:-

Council expresses alarm at the rise in antisemitism in recent years across the UK. 
This includes incidents when criticism of Israel has been expressed using 
antisemitic tropes. Criticism of Israel can be legitimate, but not if it employs the 
tropes and imagery of antisemitism.

We therefore welcome the UK Government’s support of the internationally 
recognised International Holocaust Remembrance Alliance (IHRA) guidelines on 
antisemitism which define antisemitism thus: 

‘Antisemitism is a certain perception of Jews, which may be expressed as hatred 
toward Jews. Rhetorical and physical manifestations of antisemitism are directed 



toward Jewish or non-Jewish individuals and/or their property, toward Jewish 
community institutions and religious facilities.’ 

The guidelines highlight manifestations of antisemitism as including:

 ‘Calling for, aiding, or justifying the killing or harming of Jews in the name of a 
radical ideology or an extremist view of religion. 

 Making mendacious, dehumanizing, demonizing, or stereotypical allegations 
about Jews as such or the power of Jews as collective — such as, especially but 
not exclusively, the myth about a world Jewish conspiracy or of Jews controlling 
the media, economy, government or other societal institutions. 

 Accusing Jews as a people of being responsible for real or imagined 
wrongdoing committed by a single Jewish person or group, or even for acts 
committed by non-Jews. 

 Denying the fact, scope, mechanisms (e.g. gas chambers) or intentionality of 
the genocide of the Jewish people at the hands of National Socialist Germany 
and its supporters and accomplices during World War II (the Holocaust). 

 Accusing the Jews as a people, or Israel as a state, of inventing or exaggerating 
the Holocaust. 

 Accusing Jewish citizens of being more loyal to Israel, or to the alleged priorities 
of Jews worldwide, than to the interests of their own nations. 

 Denying the Jewish people their right to self-determination, e.g., by claiming that 
the existence of a State of Israel is a racist endeavour. 

 Applying double standards by requiring of it behaviour not expected or 
demanded of any other democratic nation. 

 Using the symbols and images associated with classic antisemitism (e.g., 
claims of Jews killing Jesus or blood libel) to characterize Israel or Israelis. 

 Drawing comparisons of contemporary Israeli policy to that of the Nazis. 

 Holding Jews collectively responsible for actions of the state of Israel.’ 

Council welcomes the cross-party support within the Council for combating 
antisemitism in all its manifestations. Council hereby adopts the above definition 
of antisemitism as set out by the International Holocaust Remembrance Alliance 
and pledges to combat this pernicious form of racism.”

13.  TO PASS THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION, THAT IS TO SAY:

That the Council authorises the fixing of its seal to any documents to give effect to 
the Minutes and proceedings of the Committees submitted to or approved by this 
meeting and any other matter dealt with at this meeting.



BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

A MEETING OF THE COUNCIL of this Borough was held at the Town Hall, 
Barrow-in-Furness at 5.30 pm. on Tuesday the 15th day of October, 2019 to 
take into consideration and determine upon the following subjects, namely: -

1. - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.

2. - MINUTES.

3. - TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.

4. - LIST OF ENGAGEMENTS CARRIED OUT BY THE                            
MAYOR AND DEPUTY MAYOR.

5. - ANNOUNCEMENTS.

6. - QUESTION BY A MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC.

7. - (A) TO RECEIVE REPORTS FROM THE                      
FOLLOWING COMMITTEES AND CONSIDER                           
RECOMMENDATIONS:-

(1) Planning
(2) Licensing Regulatory
(3) Licensing
(4) Executive
(5) Audit
(6) Overview and Scrutiny

(B) QUESTIONS TO THE LEADER OF THE          
COUNCIL.

8. - CLIMATE CHANGE EMERGENCY POLICY AND           
ACTION PLAN - UPDATE.

9. - NOTICE OF MOTION UNDER RULE 11.

10. - COUNCILLOR R. WORTHINGTON - NON                         
ATTENDANCE AT COUNCIL AND COMMITTEE                       
MEETINGS.

11. - TO ORDER THE COMMON SEAL TO BE                          
AFFIXED TO DOCUMENTS.

PRESENT:- Councillor Hamilton (Mayor in the Chair) and Councillors Assouad, 
Barlow, Biggins, Blezard, Brook, Burns, Burley, Callister, Cassidy, D. Edwards, 
H. Edwards, Gawne, Hall, Husband, R. McClure, McEwan, McLeavy, Maddox, 
Mooney, Morgan, Nott, Pemberton, Pidduck, Preston, Roberts, Robson, 
Ronson, Seward, Shirley, A. Thomson, C. Thomson and Wall.

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Officers Present:- Sam Plum (Executive Director), Susan Roberts (Director of 
Resources), Jon Huck (Democratic Services Manager and Monitoring Officer), 
Sharron Rushton (Democratic Services Officer) and Katie Pepper (Democratic 
and Electoral Services Apprentice).

38 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 16th July, 2019 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

39 – Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors Johnston and 
Worthington.

40 – List of Engagements Carried Out by the Mayor and Deputy Mayor

A list of the engagements carried out by the Mayor and Deputy Mayor between 
17th July and 15th October, 2019 had been submitted for information and noted.

41 – Announcements

The Leader of the Council made the following announcement:-

Since Council met on 16th July, 2019 there had been a number of initiatives that 
she brought to Councils attention:

Developing our Economy to Create a Prosperous Borough

The Council had been driving a number of regeneration and economic 
development opportunities including:-

 Developing Marina Village – The Council was carrying out further 
remediation work whilst pursuing a number of potential funding routes;

 Working with South Lakeland District Council and Lancaster City Council to 
develop proposals for the economic growth of the Lancaster and South 
Cumbria City Region. The Council were now hoping to discuss proposals 
with Government Ministers to build a case for further investment in the 
region;

 Working with FEDF partners to further develop a shared vision for the 
redevelopment and regeneration of key sites and areas within Barrow;

 Build work was continuing on Harding Rise Business Centre, which would 
create another great opportunity for new and expanding businesses to 
locate to the Waterfront Business Park;

 Through the Housing Maintenance Framework with Procure Plus Holdings, 
the Council secured added social value of placing 7 apprentices with 
maintenance providers; and

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



 Working with Women’s Community Matters and Building Better 
Opportunities to provide bespoke training to women in construction skills 
with a view to developing work placements.

A Strong and Vibrant Town Centre Community

The Town Centre was vital to the future of the Borough. In recent months and 
weeks the Council had been:-

 Successfully moving into full business case development for Future High 
Streets funding, the Council would now be working up a full business case 
for submission next summer;

 Successfully moving into full business case development for Historic 
England Heritage Action Zone Funding for Duke Street, the Council would 
now be working up a full business case for January 2020;

 Working with the BID to look at enhancing the Town Centre offer, and 
increasing the numbers of shoppers and visitors;

 Working with Zest Community Action Group to improve the look and 
cleanliness of the Town Centre;

 Continuing to put on a fantastic range of events in the Forum and 
developing and promoting the Indoor Market to attract more visitors to the 
Town Centre;

 Supporting the Barra Culture successful Creative People and Places bid, 
which would bring £2m of funding for creative culture and arts activity over 
the next 4 years.

Closing the Gap on Health Inequalities

This continued to be a big issue for the Borough and were working with the 
Health Sector, the County Council, the Police and the Voluntary and Community 
Sector to do all the Council could to shift some of the problems we have. The 
Council were:-

 Supporting work on Barrow Island to tackle issues. That included 
supporting the Egerton Court Hub, working with a wider group of residents 
and getting out and talking to local people about how working together;

 Supporting work in Ormsgill to develop a hub and wider Community Centre 
to provide a range of services and support to local people;

 Using the Councils licensing and enforcement powers to ensure residents 
were kept safe and to encourage more healthy activity and behaviour;

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



 Continuing to work in partnership with the Environment Agency, United 
Utilities, Love My Beach and other Coastal District Councils to improve 
bathing water quality and taking part in a joint #ActiveCoast Initiative to 
promote the use of our beautiful beaches over the summer;

 Supporting the first #BeWellFest and Love Barrow Running Festival;

 Developing #HealthyChoiceAwards project to encourage local food 
businesses to offer healthier menu choices;

 Developing an implementation plan for the Cumbria Joint Public Health 
Strategy, in partnership with Cumbria County Council and Cumbria District 
Councils;

 Re-launching the Health and Wellbeing Forum with local partners;

 Declared a Climate Change Emergency and started work on a strategy 
and action plan to reduce carbon emissions, which would also benefit local 
air quality and public health.

The Mayor and Councillor Callister advised that the Love Barrow Running 
Festival had been a huge success and very well attended.  The Mayor wished to 
place on record the Council’s thanks to all involved.

42 – Question by the Public

The Mayor advised Members that questions by members of the public did not 
give rise to debate or voting.

Mr Harris had attended the meeting to ask a question regarding the Council 
making a series of commitments to help people who feel suicidal.  The question 
was as follows:-

“Will Council join with me in supporting the motion which was put forward by 
Councillors Shirley and McEwan tonight? 

Mr Harris gave a personal account as to why he supported this motion.

The Leader of the Council responded by thanking Mr Harris for his question and 
for sharing his very difficult story with the Council.

It was moved by Councillor Shirley and seconded by Councillor McEwan that 
Agenda Item 9 - Notice of Motion Under Rule 11 be brought forward and 
considered along with the question by the public.

A vote was taken and it was

RESOLVED:- To agree to consider Agenda Item 9 - Notice of Motion Under 
Rule 11 following the question by the public.

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



43 – Notice of Motion Under Rule 11

The following motion had been signed by Councillors Shirley and McEwan and 
had been provided to the Council with Notice under Rule 11:-

“This motion calls on Council to make a series of commitments, to help people 
who feel suicidal. We are seeking commitment that Council will take immediate 
action to help overcome the taboo around suicide.

We call on Council to offer mental health first aid courses to all staff and 
members and to appoint mental health first responders, so that if our staff, 
customers and those people that we come into contact with outside of this place 
present to us as potentially unwell and suicidal we may be able to help, support 
and signpost that person, in an appropriate way, so they get the help they need, 
immediately.

This motion calls on Council to declare the Borough of Barrow and Furness as 
an “every life matters community”. A community where we accept the word 
suicide but are putting the steps in place to help prevent more people from 
tragically taking their own life.

We call on Council to commit to removing the taboo around the subject, to talk 
openly and freely about one’s own mental health, so that together we become 
mentally fit and healthy; we look out for one and other and we are equipped with 
the knowledge required to assist if a friend, colleague or a total stranger fall 
unwell and are at one with their own mental health.

We ask Council to commit to work together with the Public Health Team from 
Cumbria County Council’s Local Area Health and Well-being Team for Barrow 
Borough. I ask Council to work together in seeking to roll out a publicity 
campaign with the aim of raising awareness, training up more people to be 
mental health first responders and making our Borough an official “every life 
matters” Borough. So that our residents can be supported to live happier lives 
and know that the help is there, when they need it and that they know how to 
access it”.

A vote was taken on the motion and it was

RESOLVED:- To unanimously agree to support the motion.

REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

44 – Planning

It was moved by Councillor C. Thomson, and

RESOLVED:- That the reports of the meetings of the Planning Committee held 
on 6th August, 10th September and 1st October, 2019 be received.

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



45 – Licensing Regulatory

It was moved by Councillor Callister, and 

RESOLVED:- (i) That the meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Committee 
scheduled for 18th July, 2019 had been cancelled; and

(ii) That the reports of the meetings of the Licensing Regulatory Committee held 
on 5th September and 3rd October, 2019 be received.

46 – Licensing

The Mayor advised that the meetings of the Licensing Committee scheduled for 
18th July, 5th September and 3rd October, 2019 had been cancelled.

47 – Executive

It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor Roberts that the 
reports of the meetings of the Executive Committee held on 24th July and 4th 
September, 2019 be received and that each of the recommendations contained 
therein be adopted.

RESOLVED:- That the reports of the meetings of the Executive Committee held 
on 24th July and 4th September, 2019 be received and that each of the 
recommendations contained therein be adopted, as follows:-

1. Annual Treasury Management Statement

RESOLVED:- To agree the Council receives the Annual Treasury Management 
Statement for 2018-2019.

2. Local Council Tax Support

RESOLVED:- To agree the continuation of the current Local Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme for 2020-2021.

3. Corporate Policies

RESOLVED:- To delegate minor revisions of corporate policies to the Director of 
Resources.

4. Establishment Matter

RESOLVED:- To create a permanent full time Mobile Caretaker on Scale 1/2 
within the Housing Revenue Account.

48 – Audit 

It was moved by Councillor Burns, and

Page 10

Agenda Item 2



RESOLVED:- That the reports of the meetings of the Audit Committee held on 
25th July and 19th September, 2019 be received.

49 – Overview and Scrutiny

It was moved by Councillor McLeavy, and 

RESOLVED:- That the report of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 11th September, 2019 be received.

50 – Questions to the Leader of the Council

There had been no questions submitted to the Leader of the Council under 
notice as required by Standing Order 10.2 and 10.4.

The Leader of the Council took the following question without notice from a 
Member which was relevant to the business of the meeting.

Councillor Shirley referred to Minute No. 20 of the Audit Committee held on 25th 
July, 2019 (Internal Audit Final Reports) and asked the Leader if she could give 
assurance that due diligence would be taken when looking at the tendering 
process in regards to the maintenance of the Barrow Playing Fields in the 
future?

The Leader delegated Councillor Callister to respond to the above question.

Councillor Callister responded to the above question.

51 – Climate Change Emergency Policy and Action Plan - Update

The Public Protection Manager submitted a report providing Council with an 
update on the development of the Councils Climate Change Policy and Action 
Plan.

Through the Climate Change Act 2008 the Government had committed to 
reduce emissions by 100% of 1990 levels (net zero) by 2050 and contribute to 
global emission reductions, to limit global temperature rise to as little as possible 
above 2°C.

At the Council meeting on 16th July, 2019 Council had declared a Climate 
Change Emergency and planned to establish a working group comprising 
Members, Officers and other interested parties to look at all areas of policy and 
delivery. 

Update on Working Group, Policy and Action Plan

A working group had been set up and the first meeting had been held on 22nd 
August, 2019, and had comprised Officers from Public Protection, Procurement, 
Property Services, Housing, Planning, Streetcare, Housing Maintenance and the 
Executive Director.

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



A Members group had also been established and had one meeting to begin to 
identify key priorities and actions. 

A Climate Change Policy and Action Plan was being developed to demonstrate 
and clarify the Councils position and ambitions. The Council wanted to be in the 
best position to set challenging yet achievable actions and targets in its Policy 
and Plan. With that in mind the Council needed strong baseline data to inform its 
plans. Cumbria Chief Executives group had commissioned a piece of work with 
Lancaster University to baseline the current carbon footprint and that was 
expected to be completed early in the New Year. The Council were also using 
available modelling techniques to calculate the expected date for net zero, but 
again that figure was not yet available. 

The Climate Change Action Plan was intended to be a fluid document to pull 
together all initiatives that the Council could control or influence. Responsibility 
for collating the data and keeping the action plan up to date would lie in Public 
Protection Services, with a lead within the Council responsible for delivering or 
reporting on each action. Through initial discussions, the Council were looking at 
a range of actions which would ensure the Council itself minimised its carbon 
footprint through its own estate and assets, and that the Council provided 
opportunities, advice and support for its residents and local businesses to do the 
same.

The Council had also recently submitted a bid for funding from the European 
Regional Development Fund, in partnership with Art Gene, to help move to a 
Low Carbon Barrow. Further information would be provided if the bid was 
successful.

Next Steps

1) Baseline the Councils current carbon budget and model targets for net 
zero;

2) A Draft Policy and Action plan to be circulated to Members, Officers and  
other interested parties for comments;

3) The working group would meet and agree changes;

4) Public Protection Services would update the Policy and Action Plan for 
approval through Management Board and Executive Committee;

5) The Policy and Action Plan to be reported to Council in March 2020.

RESOLVED:- To note the work to date to develop the Climate Change Policy 
and Climate Change Action Plan.

52 – Councillor R. Worthington - Non Attendance at Council and 
Committee Meetings

The Executive Director submitted a report that sought Members’ views on the 
dispensation of Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972 in respect of 
Councillor R. Worthington.

Page 12

Agenda Item 2



Under the Local Government Act 1972 Section 85, Councillors who failed to 
attend Council meetings for a six month period were automatically removed from 
office. That could be waived by resolution of the Council, provided the resolution 
was within the six month period of non-attendance.

The Executive Director supported the dispensation.

It was moved by Councillor H. Edwards and seconded by Councillor M. A. 
Thomson that a dispensation for non attendance for Councillor R. Worthington 
be approved due to personal circumstances, he was currently unable to attend 
Council or other Committee meetings.

RESOLVED:- That the dispensation of Section 85 of the Local Government Act 
1972 in respect of Councillor R. Worthington be supported.

53 – Common Seal

RESOLVED:- That the Council authorises the affixing of its Common Seal to any 
documents to give effect to the Minutes and proceedings of the Committees 
submitted to or approved by this meeting and any other matters dealt with at this 
meeting.

The meeting closed at 6.13 pm.

Page 13

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

AN EXTRAORDINARY MEETING OF THE COUNCIL of this Borough was held 
at the Town Hall, Barrow-in-Furness at 5.30 pm. on Tuesday the 12th day of 
November, 2019 to take into consideration and determine upon the following 
subjects, namely: -

1. - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.

2. - TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.

3. - ANNOUNCEMENTS.

4. - TO RECEIVE A REPORT FROM THE                                                
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AND CONSIDER                            
RECOMMENDATIONS.

5. - TO ORDER THE COMMON SEAL TO BE                          
AFFIXED TO DOCUMENTS.

PRESENT:- Councillor Hamilton (Mayor in the Chair) and Councillors Assouad 
Blezard, Brook, Burns, Burley, Callister, Cassidy, D. Edwards, Gawne, Hall, 
Husband, Johnston, R. McClure, W. McClure, McEwan, McLeavy, Mooney, 
Morgan, Pemberton, Pidduck, Preston, Roberts, Robson, Ronson, Seward, 
Shirley, A. Thomson, C. Thomson and Wall.

Officers Present:- Sam Plum (Executive Director), Susan Roberts (Director of 
Resources), Jon Huck (Democratic Services Manager and Monitoring Officer), 
Debbie Storr (Principal Legal Officer), Paula Westwood (Democratic Services 
Officer - Member Support) and Sandra Kemsley (Democratic Services Officer).

54 – Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors Barlow, Biggins, H. 
Edwards, Nott and Worthington.

55 – Announcements

There were no announcements from the Chairman, Leader or Head of Paid 
Service.

56 – Report of the Executive Committee

It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor Roberts that the 
report of the Executive Committee held on 23rd October, 2019 be received and 
that each of the recommendations contained therein be adopted.

RESOLVED:- That the report of the meeting of the Executive Committee held on 
23rd October, 2019 be received and that each of the recommendations 
contained therein be adopted as follows:-

Page 15

Agenda Item 2
Appendix 1



1. Establishment Changes

RESOLVED:- 

(i) To agree the re-titling of the Executive Director to Chief Executive;

(ii) To agree the deletion of the Assistant Director - Regeneration and Built 
Environment together with the creation of the Director of People and 
Place;

(iii) To vary the Officer Employment Procedure rules on this occasion and 
allocate a place on the Recruitment Panel to the Leader of the Council;

(iv) To create a permanent Policy and Engagement Officer post on the grade 
Principal Officer 4;

(v) To delegate any restructure or reorganisation of services to the Chief 
Executive with the provision that the financial implications were agreed 
with the Director of Resources or presented to the Executive Committee if 
there was an increase in the core revenue budgets or a change in 
headcount; and

(vi) To authorise the Monitoring Officer to amend the Constitution for any 
changes resulting from these recommendations.

2. Election Duties

RESOLVED:- To approve the award of a pro-rata day of annual leave for direct 
employees who performed election duties in relation to parliamentary and 
election referendum counts.

3. Establishment Matters

RESOLVED:-

(i) To delegate operational establishment matters, as set out in the report, to 
the Executive Director and the Director of Resources; and

(ii) To authorise the Monitoring Officer to amend the Constitution for any 
changes resulting from the recommendation.

4. Furness Economic Development Forum

RESOLVED:-

(i) To agree the use of £20,000 as a contribution to support the Furness 
Economic Development Forum over two years, funded from reserves, 
and was subject to the full funding package being secured from other 
funders;

Page 16

Agenda Item 2
Appendix 1



(ii) To agree in principle to be the Accountable Body for FEDF for two years; 
and

(iii) To delegate the final Accountable Body decision to the Executive 
Director.

5. Low Carbon Barrow

RESOLVED:-

1. To support the Low Carbon Barrow project;

2. To endorse the use of the Transformation Reserve for the Low Carbon 
Barrow project as the Council’s match funding and also to fund business 
case preparation required at the next stage of the bidding process;

3. To agree in principle that the Council be the accountable body for 
potential ERDF and Cumbria LEP grants subject to the required 
assessment by the Director of Resources; and

4. To delegate acceptance of any ERDF or Cumbria LEP grant offers to the 
Executive Director in consultation with the Director of Resources and the 
Chair of the Executive Committee.

6. Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places (Parliamentary 
Elections) Regulations 2006

RESOLVED:- To agree that no changes be made to the Polling Districts and 
Polling Places as detailed in the Appendix to the report.

57 – Common Seal

RESOLVED:- That the Council authorises the affixing of its Common Seal to any 
documents to give effect to the Minutes and proceedings of the Committees 
submitted to or approved by this meeting and any other matters dealt with at this 
meeting.

The meeting closed at 5.33 pm.

Page 17

Agenda Item 2
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



ENGAGEMENTS CARRIED OUT BY THE MAYOR  (for noting)

FROM 16th OCTOBER,  2019 – 21ST JANUARY, 2020

Date Time Engagement

16th October 1.30 pm Mayor & Deputy Mayor attended Re-opening of Park

17th October 7.00 pm Mayor attended Tri Service Meeting

17th October 7.30 pm Deputy Mayor attended Walney Junior AOS performance of 
High School Musical

18th October 7.30 pm Deputy Mayor attended Sea Cadets Trafalgar Ball

23rd October 6.00 pm Mayor attended CASD50 Commemorative Event

24th October 8.00 pm Mayor attended Pumpkin Ball

1st November 7.00 pm Deputy Mayor attended Launch of Furness Litfest

6th November 10.00 am Mayor attended opening of Age UK Charity Shop

6th November 12.00 pm Mayor attended opening Alfred Barrow Health Centre

6th November 7.00 pm Mayor attended K2B Awards

9th November 10.45 am Mayor attended Remembrance Service at Barrow Railway 
Station

10th November 10.00 am Mayor and Deputy Mayor attended Barrow, Dalton & Askam 
Remembrance Services

11th November 7.00 pm Deputy Mayor attended Sea Cadets Meeting

15th November 11.00 am Deputy Mayor opened Dave’s Fashions market stall

15th November 7.30 pm Mayor attended Walney Musical Theatre performance of 
Sister Act

15th November 7.30 pm Deputy Mayor attended Rotary Club Charter Dinner

16th November 10.00 am Mayor attended Inner Wheel Club Xmas Coffee Morning

17th November 12.00 pm Mayor attended celebrity football match for Children in Need

22nd November 2.00 pm Deputy Mayor attended concert at Abbeyfield Society

22nd November 6.30 pm Deputy Mayor attended Cadet Forces Dinner

23rd November 6.30 pm Mayor attended Xmas Lights Switch

29th November 7.30 pm Mayor attended Boxing Dinner

30th November 7.30 pm Mayor and Deputy Mayor attended D of L Regiment Dinner

Page 19

Agenda Item 4



5th December 2.00 pm Mayor attended Vision Support Centre Xmas Party

6th December 11.00 am Mayor to open new market stall Handmade by Helen

6th December 7.00 pm Deputy Mayor attended Mayor of Dalton’s Xmas Concert

9th December 7.00 pm Deputy Mayor attended Sea Cadets Meeting

11th December 2.00 pm Mayor attended Co-op Choir Concert

13th December 12.30 pm Mayor attended Abbeyfield Xmas Lunch

15th December 2.00 pm Mayor and Deputy Mayor attended Barrow Panto

16th December 1.30 pm Mayor attended Carols by Holy Family children

17th December 7.15 pm Mayor and Deputy Mayor attended Sea Cadets Annual 
Awards Night

18th December 7.00 pm Deputy Mayor attended Rotary Xmas Party

20th December 11.30 am Mayor judged best Xmas decorated stall

23rd December 2.00 pm Mayor attended Abbeyfield Society’s concert by Martin 
Smith

16th January 10.00 am Mayor hosted tour of Town Hall for Vickerstown School

20th January 7.00 pm Deputy Mayor attended Sea Cadets Meeting

Page 20

Agenda Item 4



COUNCIL

Date of Meeting: 21st January, 2020

Reporting Officer: Corporate Support Manager

Title: The Council Plan 2020-2024

Summary and Conclusions: 

The Council Plan has been updated with Officer and Member input to ensure 
we are focusing on the right priorities and outcomes throughout the given 
period to improve the Borough as a whole. The attached plan is currently the 
latest draft and a final version will be tabled at the Council meeting.

Recommendations: 

To recommend the Council to endorse the updated Council Plan for the 
period 2020-2024. 

Report

Executive Summary 

The Council Plan has been revised to take into account updates to the 
Council’s priorities to meet the future challenges and opportunities for the 
Borough. The Council Plan 2020-2024 (Appendix 1) has been developed 
with input from both Members and Officers, to ensure the Council as a whole 
understands and strives to achieve our priority outcomes. The attached 
version of the plan is the latest draft and a final version will be tabled at the 
meeting.

Introduction

The Council Plan is a key strategic document which sets the priorities for the 
Borough and will guide decision making, including how public money is spent 
during the period 2020-2024. It sits alongside the MTFS and also reflects the 
plans and strategies of other organisations that we will work with. 

The Council Plan sets our strategic direction for the next four years. It is 
underpinned by a performance management framework which will ensure that 
we target our resources in the right areas to deliver our priorities. 

Vision and Priorities

The vision is for our Borough to be a great place to live, work and visit.

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



We will achieve the vision through our three Council Plan priorities;

 Enabling our residents to live happy, healthy, productive lives. 

 Creating vibrant, safe and welcoming places where people want to live. 

 Supporting our economy to thrive and benefit all our residents.

Values and Behaviours:  

We aim to put our residents at the heart of all we do. The values that will drive 
our behaviours are:

 To focus on our community and provide excellent service for all our 
customers and colleagues.

 To demonstrate honesty and integrity by doing the right thing, being open 
and confident to challenge and be challenged.

 To aim high, encouraging creativity and embracing change.
 To be proud and celebrate who we are and what we do.
 Our team will all work together to achieve our shared vision and goals.

Each priority is as follows:

Priority 1: People – Enabling residents to live happy, healthy productive 
lives.
Putting people at the centre of all that we do is a key priority for the Council. 
We will do this by helping them to have the best start in life, enjoy healthy and 
active lifestyles, and have opportunities to improve their well-being by building 
strong communities. We will actively encourage people to work with us to 
design activities that meet their needs.

Priority 2: Place – Creating vibrant, safe and welcoming places where 
people want to live.
Barrow Borough is a great place where people come to live, work and have 
fun. There is an abundance of natural beauty and heritage but there is also an 
opportunity to offer people more. We will work with our communities so that 
people can enjoy good health and live in a safe environment where they can 
be happy and reach their full potential. We want to build on existing strengths 
and encourage more people to visit the town centres in Barrow and Dalton by 
making them more vibrant so that residents and visitors enjoy a positive and 
memorable experience. We want to protect our natural environment. 

Priority 3: Prosperity – Supporting our economy to thrive to ensure a 
long term economic future for all our community. 
Barrow’s manufacturing heritage and its pivotal role in the defence industry is 
a source of local pride and tradition. Our world class manufacturing expertise 
is recognised worldwide, however to enable inclusive growth we will seek to 
diversify our economy to secure opportunities for our residents by supporting 
other key industries including the growing renewable energy sector. 

Page 22

Agenda Item 7



In particular we need to secure continued investment in the town and ensure 
our residents have the skills and services to allow them to benefit from the 
growing economy. We will deliver our ambitions through effective joint working 
with public and private sector partners, by offering a clear policy framework, 
proactive steps to promote the role and opportunities within the town and by 
securing additional public and private investment.  

Background Papers

Nil

Report Author

Corporate Support Assistant 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Barrow Borough Council Plan 2020 - 2024

Page 25

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



• • foreword • •
Our Council Plan sets out our vision and priorities for the next four years. It’s is owned and 
supported by all staff and Councillors. 

We want our Borough to be a great place to live, work and visit and we will use the priorities in this 
Plan to focus our resources to make sure we do everything we can to achieve this. We will need 
to be bold and ambitious to deliver this vision, and we will need to find different ways to work to 
make the most of the resources we have available 

We know we can’t do this on our own. We will need to work with partners from the public and 
voluntary sectors, businesses and most importantly our residents, to achieve our ambitions. 
While our services play a significant role in shaping the future of our Borough, we will only 
achieve our vision through the active participation of all our partners. This Plan sets out where 
we can take action directly, where we need to work in partnership and where we need to 
influence others. We will spend time throughout the life of this plan making sure our partnerships 
are strong and everyone understands the part they play in our journey. We will need to bring the 
assets and resources of all sectors to bear on our priorities if we are to make real progress. 

We want to grow a reputation for being a compassionate Council that puts our residents at the 
heart of all we do, where we go out of our way to support those that need it most.  We already 
provide services that support some of our most vulnerable residents, but over the course of this 
Plan we will get better at listening to all our residents and communities, giving them a real voice 
in the way we achieve our ambitions, and how they can work with us to get there. We want our 
residents to be proud of their Borough and their Council. 

Our staff and our Councillors are our strongest ambassadors and advocates. We are the 
democratically accountable organisation for our Borough, and we have a duty to champion this 
place and act as community leaders. We will harness our commitment, passion, ingenuity and 
energy to deliver this Plan and achieve our vision. 

We have a lot to do, but we also have some incredible assets and opportunities, coupled with 
new funding for regeneration and economic development promised in the coming years. We 
will use these opportunities to help reduce inequality, provide opportunities for everyone and 
build an economy that works for us all. We will celebrate and build on our assets to create a 
welcoming, attractive and safe Borough where people want to live and raise a family. We also 
need to understand our impact on our planet and do all we can to create a sustainable world 
for future generations. We have already declared a climate emergency and will do all we 
can to make sure our Borough reduces its carbon footprint, and protects and enhances our 
outstanding natural environment. 

This Plan sets out immediate actions we will take to make Barrow Borough a great place to live, 
work and visit.  It will be underpinned by detailed delivery plans, which will be measured through 
our performance management framework. This will help us demonstrate that we are  using all 
our resources wisely and investing in the right services and interventions to make the biggest 
positive impact on our priorities. We will work tirelessly to deliver this plan, and we will make time 
to celebrate our successes along the way. 

We look forward to reporting our progress in the coming years

Cllr Ann Thomson - Leader of the Council

Sam Plum - Chief Executive 

Barrow Borough Council Plan

1

Page 26

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



The Council is committed to creating better lives for the people of Barrow Borough.

The Council Plan is the strategic document that will guide decision making and how we 
spend public money for the period 2020 – 2024.

It builds on our successes in balancing the Council’s budget to account for the reduction 
in spending power, whilst still delivering the projects that will regenerate the Borough. 

We will work together to set clear priorities and actions around increasing prosperity 
through a growing and diverse economy, improving the environment by providing better 
homes and preserving the Boroughs natural beauty, and supporting all people in our 
Borough; we will make Barrow a great place to live, work and visit.

Our vision is for our Borough to be a great place to live, work and visit. 

We will achieve this by being a compassionate Council, putting residents at the heart of 
all we do. This is underpinned by the following values and behaviours. 

▷	 	To focus on our community and provide excellent service for all our customers 
and colleagues.

▷	 	To demonstrate honesty and integrity by doing the right thing, being open and 
confident	to	challenge	and	be	challenged.

▷	 To aim high, encouraging creativity and embracing change.

▷	 To be proud and celebrate who we are and what we do.

▷	 Our team will all work together to achieve our shared vision and goals.

• • introduction • •

Our Vision and Values

Barrow Borough Council Plan

2

Page 27

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Enabling residents to live happy, healthy productive lives.
Putting people at the centre of all that we do is a key priority for the Council. We will do 
this by helping them to have the best start in life, enjoy healthy and active lifestyles, and 
have opportunities to improve their well-being by building strong communities. We will 
actively encourage people to work with us to design activities that meet their needs. We 
will work with our communities so that people can enjoy good health and live in a safe 
environment where they can be happy and reach their full potential.

Actions 

•  Work with the health and care system to develop prevention and early 
intervention plans to reduce health inequalities.

•  Use our place leadership role to drive health and well-being forums and 
partnerships to ensure they get the best results for our residents.

• Work with partners to tackle specific health issues in the Borough:

▷ Mental illness

▷ Substance misuse

▷ Diet and exercise

Outcome: More of our residents are living well for longer. 

• • people • •
Priority 1: People

Barrow Borough Council Plan

3

Page 28

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Actions
•  Encourage greater use of leisure facilities including parks, woodlands, beaches 

and open spaces including participation in, Park Run, Junior Park Run and Active 
Barrow Mums. Especially for our least active residents.

•  Work with Life Leisure to do more to support our communities to make 
healthier choices.

•  Promote local walks/activities e.g. walk for health/cycle events through social 
media.

•  Work with Cumbria Partnership NHS Foundation Trust to deliver Health Priorities. 

•  Provide a range of facilities and opportunities to encourage participation in sport.

• Promote healthier lifestyles for our own employees.

Outcome: More of our residents are making healthy lifestyle choices.

 

Actions
Our communities are strong, confident and actively engaged in shaping their future. 
•  Celebrate the achievements and successes of our communities through 

publically raising awareness of the great things they do.

•  Provide support for voluntary community services by involving, engaging and 
empowering them to be at the heart of our neighbourhoods.

•  Work closely with voluntary community organisations to understand key 
opportunities and challenges within our communities and the interventions that 
may help to overcome these.

•  Seek to secure new investment that can support the empowerment of our 
communities, in particular those within the most deprived parts of the Borough.

•  Build community resilience through increasing participation in local activities 
and decision making and enable residents to influence and contribute to 
service delivery.

Outcome: Our communities are strong, confident and actively engaged in 
shaping their future.

• • people • •
Barrow Borough Council Plan

4

Page 29

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Actions 
•  Actively lead the South Cumbria Community Safety Partnership and ensure 

actions to improve safety in Barrow are delivered.

• Work with partners to protect our most vulnerable residents by;

▷ Tackling homelessness.

▷ Delivering disabled facilities grants.

▷ Being corporate parents.

▷ Supporting people with special educational needs and disabilities.

▷ Contributing to the Cumbria Safeguarding Adults Board.

Outcome: People will feel safe where they live.

• • people • •
Barrow Borough Council Plan

5

Page 30

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



• • place • •

Creating a vibrant, safe & welcoming place where people want to live 

Barrow Borough is a great place to live, work and have fun. There is an abundance of 
natural beauty and heritage but there is also an opportunity to offer people more. We 
want a varied housing offer to retain our residents and attract new people to settle here. 
We want to build on existing strengths and encourage more people to visit the town 
centres in Barrow and Dalton by making them more vibrant so that residents and visitors 
enjoy a positive and memorable experience. We want to protect our natural environment. 

Actions
•  Deliver the Local Plan for developing housing sites throughout the Borough. 

•  Prepare evidence base and a Housing Strategy to determine priorities and 
actions needed to improve housing offer. 

• Reduce the number of empty properties.

•  Develop a Housing Renewal Policy which focuses on delivering improvements 
which improve the quality of life for residents.

•  Encourage the development of supported special needs housing in the 
Borough. 

• Promote through Cumbria Choice Based Letting. 

•  Ensure that all Local Authority dwellings continue to meet the Decent Homes 
Standard.

• Explore opportunities to build new social housing with partner organisations. 

• Review options for increasing affordable social housing within the Borough.

•  Work with key partners to deliver transformative development at Marina 
Village, part of a comprehensive redevelopment of Barrow’s historic 
waterfront.

Outcome: Our Borough has a diverse housing offer, where everyone can 
expect a decent home they can afford to live in.  

Priority 2: Place

Barrow Borough Council Plan

6

Page 31

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Actions   
• Work with residents to foster positive attitudes to maintaining cleanliness.

•  Work with our contractors to deliver effective street cleaning and grounds 
maintenance services. 

•  Be tough on those who blight our neighbourhoods with fly tipping, litter and dog 
fouling through a robust approach to enforcement.

• Raise awareness through targeted marketing campaigns.

•  Work closely with representatives from the Boroughs towns and villages to build 
community pride and ensure they feel engaged, empowered and involved.

Outcome: Our neighbourhoods are clean, welcoming and attractive.

Actions
• Deliver our climate emergency action plan.

• Enhanced greener spaces; public parks, beaches etc. 

•  Reduce our use of natural reserves through reduction, recycling, reuse 
materials and work with our residents to increase our recycling rates.

• Work with partners to raise awareness of natural assets and celebrate them. 

Outcome: Our environment is enhanced, protected and celebrated.

• • place • •
Barrow Borough Council Plan

7

Page 32

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Actions
•  Work alongside the BID team to continue improving and promoting leisure 

facilities, cultural offers and retail.

• Deliver joint destination marketing with Cumbria Tourism and Cumbria LEP

▷ Developing a Culture Compact – with SLDC and Lancaster.

▷ Improve the amenity of the town, promoting natural beauty.

▷  Maintain and grow the good quality leisure offer provided by the Forum, 
Dock Museum and Barrow Park.

▷  Develop tourism by providing greater access to information and develop 
the Visit Barrow brand. 

▷  Create a thriving evening economy to attract residents and visitors to the 
town centres of Barrow and Dalton.

▷  Embrace Barra Culture to promote cultural events at venues throughout 
the Borough.

▷  Work with Sport England and other key partners to develop and enhance 
availability and access to sport.

Outcome: Our Borough is seen as a destination of choice for leisure, 
culture and sport.

• • place • •
Barrow Borough Council Plan

8

Page 33

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Actions 
•  Deliver key improvements to the town centres for the benefit for residents, 

workers and tourists/visitors. 

•  Transform the experience of Barrow as retail and service destination for 
residents, visitors and businesses by facilitating a diversity of uses; enhance 
the public realm and increase accessibility.

•  Secure and deliver significant new investment for the town centre; capitalising 
on opportunities created by Future High Streets and Town’s Deal funding 
streams.

•  Improvement to infrastructure designed to achieve the safe and convenient 
movement of vehicles and pedestrians to and within the town centre. 

Outcome: Town centres are vibrant and well used.  

• • place • •
Barrow Borough Council Plan

9

Page 34

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



• • prosperity • •

Supporting our economy to thrive to ensure a long term economic 
future for all our community
Barrow’s manufacturing heritage and its pivotal role in the defence industry is a source of 
local pride and tradition. Our world class manufacturing expertise is recognised worldwide, 
however to enable inclusive growth we will seek to diversify our economy to secure 
opportunities for our residents by supporting other key industries including the growing 
renewable energy sector. In particular we have the opportunity to secure continued 
investment in the Borough and ensure our residents have the skills and services to allow 
them to benefit from the growing economy.  We will deliver our ambitions through effective 
joint working with public and private sector partners, by offering a clear policy framework, 
proactive steps to promote the role and opportunities within the Borough and by securing 
additional public and private investment.  

Actions 
•  Engage with districts, county and Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership 

(Cumbria LEP) members to realise opportunities surrounding the Lancaster 
and South Cumbria City Region and prospective growth deal.

•  Enhance the reputation role of Barrow as a key sub-regional centre for the 
south of Cumbria.

•  Actively pursue opportunities to promote the Borough throughout the region, 
Northern Powerhouse and beyond.

Outcome: Our Borough will have a strategic role within Cumbria and as 
part of the Lancaster and South Cumbria City Region.

Priority 3: Prosperity

Barrow Borough Council Plan

10

Page 35

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Actions
• Deliver the employment sites identified through the Local Plan. 

•  Undertake a full review of assets, capital and resources to ensure that they are 
used to meet strategic objectives.

•  Bring forward a new Supplementary Planning Policy to support the Local Plan 
implementation and to maximise the opportunities it can present.

•  Develop a robust pipeline of schemes for which funding can be sought in an 
opportunistic and timely manner.

•  Create conditions for entrepreneurs and businesses to start up and grow 
through – Phoenix Business Centre and Waterfront Gateway Managed 
Business Centre. 

•  Actively seek to encourage inward investment and growth in renewable energy 
sector, visitor economy, creative and cultural industries.

•  Work with major businesses and key partners to improve commercial 
awareness and take advantage of new opportunities.

Outcome: Our Borough will have a strong and diverse economy.

• • prosperity • •
Barrow Borough Council Plan

11

Page 36

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Actions
•  Engage proactively with Cumbria LEP, Cumbria County Council, Highways 

England and Transport for the North to secure investment in the A590 and A595.

•  Work with partners to develop Barrow Port as a gateway for bulk material 
handling, nuclear waste transportation, energy services and tourism.

•  Engage proactively with Cumbria LEP, Cumbria County Council, Network Rail 
and Transport for the North to secure improved connectivity, journey times and 
services for rail journeys to and from Barrow.

• Continue to campaign to increase access to superfast broadband.

•  Work with Cumbria County Council and Highways England to improve signage 
from the A590 to the town centre and key attractions.

•  Work with Cumbria County Council to improve traffic flow and parking in the 
town centre, making it more accessible and attractive to residents, visitors and 
businesses.

•  Promote more sustainable public transport including electric buses, walking and 
cycling alongside a comprehensive approach to wayfinding, to promote and 
improve active travel.

Outcome: Barrow is a well-connected Borough with improved road, port, 
rail and digital infrastructure.

Actions
• Identify current skill gaps.

•  Work with education providers and training institutions to ensure targeted 
programme to address skill gaps to raise the aspirations of young people.

•  Work across sectors to promote a comprehensive apprenticeship programme, 
including Barrow Borough Council.

• Work across sectors to deliver a joined up marketing and recruitment campaign.

• Promote opportunities for social enterprise.

•  Adopt the principles of community wealth building to ensure all our 
communities benefit from increased prosperity.

•   Work with CAB and others to support those furthest from employment to 
reach their full potential.

Outcome: Our residents have the skills, aspirations and opportunities to 
fulfil their potential.

• • prosperity • •
Barrow Borough Council Plan

12

Page 37

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



• • delivery • •

Progress and achievement of the outcomes will be monitored through the Performance 
Management Framework.

Monitoring reports will be presented to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

A summarised report will be published on the Council’s website.

Management Team will implement any remedial action where objectives are not on 
track; Overview and Scrutiny Committee may also request remedial action through their 
discussions on progress and presentation of outcomes/outputs.  Where necessary 
matters may be escalated to the Executive Committee where the objective may need to 
be reconsidered and associated actions varied. Further breakdown of these outcomes 
and desired actions will be set within each department’s Service Plans.

Plan Delivery

Barrow Borough Council Plan

13

Page 38

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Page 39

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL

Date of Meeting: 21st January 2020

Reporting Officer:  Chief Executive    

Title: Protocol for the Award of the Freedom of the 
Borough 

Summary and Conclusions: 

1.1 Making an award of the Freedom of the Borough is the highest honour 
that the Council can bestow in recognition of excellence and 
achievement.  

1.2 There is presently no guidelines or protocol governing the way in which 
the council makes such awards.  This report proposes the adoption of 
a protocol for the award of the Freedom of the Borough.

Recommendations: 

To recommend the Council to adopt the protocol for the award of the Freedom 
of the Borough as attached to this report.

Report

1. The conferment of Freedom of the Borough is the highest honour that 
the Council can bestow.  To be granted freedom of the borough is a 
mark of distinction upon the person whom the Council wishes to honour.  
The Freedom itself carries no privilege and is purely an honour, 
reflecting the eminence of the person on whom it is conferred or as 
recognition of significant and valuable services rendered to the borough 
by that person.

2. Whilst there have been a number of Honorary Freedoms given by the 
Borough, the Council currently does not have any protocols governing 
the way in which the Council makes such awards, and a draft has been 
proposed for this purpose.  The draft protocol is attached as Appendix 1 
to this report.

3. Members are requested to consider adoption of the protocol for the 
award of the Freedom of the Borough. The protocol was considered at 
the Executive Committee on 15 January 2020.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 41

Agenda Item 8



Report Author

Debbie Storr

Appendices: Protocol for the Award of Freedom of the Borough

Page 42

Agenda Item 8



1

Barrow Borough Council 

Protocol for determining whether the
Freedom of the Borough should be conferred

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Section 249 of the Local Government Act 1972 empowers a local authority to 
confer the “Freedom of the Borough” to persons of distinction, who have in the 
opinion of the Council, rendered eminent services to the Borough.

1.2 The Freedom of the Borough is the highest honour that the Council can grant.  
It will only be used sparingly and awarded on merit to exceptional persons.  It 
should not be given too often.  The overriding principle must be that this 
award should be made on merit, defined as:

• Achievement
• Exceptional Service

1.3 Awards should not be for a job well done or because someone has reached a 
particular level. They should be awarded because an individual has, ‘gone the 
extra mile’ in the contribution they have made or stand out ‘head and 
shoulders’ above others in what has been achieved.

2.0 Background

2.1 It is important that, if a nomination to confer an Honorary Freedom is to be 
considered, that all Members of the Council will be in possession of sufficient 
facts in order to make a decision as to whether the honour should be 
conferred. Furthermore, there may be instances where there are strongly held 
views for and against and these need to be addressed as far as possible in 
advance of an Extraordinary Council meeting called for the purpose. The 
Council will want to meet with the clear consensus that the person of 
distinction is to be honoured and not humiliated by the proceedings. A 
unanimous decision is desirable, but the absence of unanimity cannot prevent 
the nomination coming forward for consideration by the Council.

2.2 To be granted, the title of Honorary Freeperson is a mark of distinction upon 
the person whom the Council wishes to honour.  Conferring the Freedom of 
the Borough does not grant the title holder any privileges, legal rights or 
responsibilities. For example, they have no rights to attend Council or 
Committee meetings, nor can they be paid an allowance. However, it does 
maintain a symbolic connection with the Council and it is hoped that those 
who are awarded this honour will support the Office of the Mayor at civic 
events and functions.

Page 43

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



2

3.0 Criteria for conferring the Freedom of the Borough

3.1 It is in the interests of transparency and public confidence that the Council 
adopts clear criteria for conferring the Freedom of the Borough.  It is proposed 
that one or more of the following are used as the criteria for the award:  The 
person has

• demonstrated exceptional achievement or service to the community which 
is outstanding in its field;

• made a real difference in their field of work or their community;
• brought distinction to the Borough or enhanced its reputation;
• given outstanding military service;
• demonstrated innovation, entrepreneurship or exceptional business 

acumen which has delivered benefits to the Borough;
• evidenced exceptional charitable service to the Borough, through either a 

national or locally based charity; 
• evidenced exceptional voluntary service to the Borough or any part of it or 

community within it; 
• carried the respect of and inspired his/her peers;
• significantly improved the lot of those less able to help themselves or 

suffering disadvantage;
• promoted community cohesion;
• displayed moral courage and vision in making and delivering tough 

choices;
• contributed to the Borough beyond the call of duty in a way that stands out 

above others.

3.2 Only in exceptional circumstances should consideration be given to the 
admission of organisations.

3.3 As this is the highest honour that a Borough Council can grant, it should be 
used sparingly and should not be given too often in order to preserve its 
status and value.

3.4 The awarding of the Freedom of the Borough to Service Units “to march 
through the streets of the Borough with bayonets fixed, drums beating and 
Colours flying” is really an empty grant.  The practice has been generally 
accepted and provides a dignified and satisfactory means of enabling a 
Borough to honour a distinguished unit of Her Majesty’s forces.

4.0 Procedure to be adopted on receipt of a Motion to confer the Freedom of 
the Borough

4.1 Nominations for persons or organisations to be granted the Freedom of the 
Borough, may be made by any Elected Member to the Monitoring Officer on 
the appropriate form (See Appendix A).  Each nomination must contain the 
support of the Elected Member’s Group Leader and where appropriate, the 

Page 44

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



3

Member should first raise the matter for discussion within their Political Group.  
An Elected Member who is not a member of a Political Group must have the 
support of at least one of the Political Group Leaders.

4.2 The Monitoring Officer will write to all Elected Members once during the 
Municipal year, to draw their attention to the opportunity to make nominations.

4.3 On receipt of the Nomination form the Monitoring Officer will ensure that 
sufficient information has been provided on the form.  Full reasons why the 
person should be considered must be included: 

• a person of distinction; or 
• a person who has rendered eminent services to the Borough. 

4.4 The Freedom Panel - When in possession of sufficient information, the 
Monitoring Officer will convene a Panel of each of the Leaders of the Political 
Groups on the Council (Deputy Leaders can substitute if their Leader is 
unable to attend), with relevant officers (The Freedom Panel) to consider:

• whether they have sufficient information on which to form a view and, if 
not, to instruct officers to seek further information; 

• once satisfied that they have adequate information, whether there is 
sufficient support for the matter to go on to the Council for decision. 

4.5 In the event that it is concluded that it is unlikely that the nomination will receive 
sufficient support, the Monitoring Officer will advise the Elected Member who 
made the nomination of this conclusion and the reasons for reaching it. The 
Elected Member will then be given the opportunity to withdraw his/her 
nomination, although the Member will still be entitled to have his/her nomination 
considered by the Council. 

4.6 Extraordinary Council Meeting - Should it be concluded that it is likely that 
there will be a two thirds majority voting in favour of the nomination, the 
Monitoring Officer will convene an Extraordinary meeting of the Council 
specifically for the consideration of the one item of business. The timing of the 
meeting will be such as, so far as it practicable, to meet the availability of the 
individual concerned to attend and to concord with the Council’s diary 
commitments. 

4.7 The subject of the nomination will be invited to attend the Extraordinary meeting 
of the Council where the nomination is to be considered. 

4.8 At the Extraordinary meeting of the Council, there will be only the one item of 
business and the Monitoring Officer will submit a report setting out the matters 
considered by the Freedom Panel and the recommendation of the Panel to 
Council to approve the nomination. 

Page 45

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



4

4.9 The resolution should recite the grounds upon which the recommendation is 
being made, and details of the public services rendered by the nominee should 
be included.  

4.10 The Mayor will take a vote on the recommendation of the Freedom Panel and a 
two-thirds majority of those present and voting is required. 

(Note: abstentions do not count as a vote and the required majority will be 
deduced from the number of Members actually voting on the item). 

4.11 After the passing of the resolution the newly admitted Freeperson (or 
representative of the organisation being admitted) should take the appropriate 
Oath and sign the Roll, his/her signature being witnessed by the Mayor and the 
Chief Executive or nominated Officer.

A sealed Certificate of the grant of Honorary Freedom should then be 
presented to the newly appointed Honorary Freeperson by the Mayor with an 
opportunity being given for the recipient to reply.

5.0 The Ceremony 

5.1 Arrangements for the ceremonial award will be made by the Democratic 
Services Manager after liaising with the Mayor, Political Group Leaders and 
the individual concerned.  This can be done either at the Extraordinary 
Council meeting and be followed by a Civic reception or at a Civic reception at 
a later date arranged specifically for that purpose.

5.2 The new Honorary Title will be added to the Freedom Roll for the Borough of 
Barrow

6.0 Revocation 

6.1 The Council retains the authority to revoke any award of the Freedom of the 
Borough at any stage following the conferment of the honour.  In doing so the 
Council will pass a resolution to revoke the status as Freeperson of the 
Borough.

6.2 In revoking the status of Freeperson the Council will remove the individual (s) 
from the role of honour in the Town Hall.

Page 46

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



APPENDIX A

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL 

NOMINATION FORM FOR FREEDOM OF THE BOROUGH

I, Councillor__________________________________________________________ 
wish to nominate the following person (organisation) to be considered for the status 
of Freedom of the Borough of Barrow-in-Furness. 

Nominee____________________________________________________________

I am aware that the overriding principle must be that this award should be made on 
merit, defined as:

• Achievement
• Exceptional Service

and that one or more of the following criteria needs to be applied to the 
achievements of the nominee. The person has:

• demonstrated exceptional achievement or service to the community which is 
outstanding in its field;

• made a real difference in their field of work or their community;
• brought distinction to the Borough or enhanced its reputation;
• given outstanding military service;
• demonstrated innovation, entrepreneurship or exceptional business acumen 

which has delivered benefits to the Borough;
• evidenced exceptional charitable service to the Borough, though either a 

national or locally based charity; 
• evidenced exceptional voluntary service to the Borough or any part of it or 

community within it; 
• carried the respect of and inspired his/her peers;
• significantly improved the lot of those less able to help themselves or suffering 

disadvantage;
• promoted community cohesion;
• displayed moral courage and vision in making and delivering tough choices;
• contributed to the Borough beyond the call of duty in a way that stands out 

above others.

I believe that they have met one or more of the criteria in the following way: 

Page 47

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2



Please continue or attach supporting evidence.

We the undersigned Councillors support this nomination for Freedom of the Borough: 

NAME:

SIGNATURE:
   

NAME:

SIGNATURE:

Page 48

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2



 

COUNCIL

Date of Meeting: 21st January 2020

Reporting Officer:  Director of Resources    

Title: Head of Legal & Governance and Monitoring Officer

Summary and Conclusions: 

This report proposes the creation of a new post of Head of Legal & 
Governance and for the post to be designated as the Council’s statutory 
Monitoring Officer to strengthen the Council’s core governance arrangements. 

Recommendations: 

To recommend the Council;-

1.  To approve the creation of a new post, Head of Legal & Governance; and

2.  To designate the Head of Legal & Governance as the Council’s Monitoring 
Officer with effect from the date of appointment.

Report

The Council does not currently have a qualified legal officer in-house and this 
presents a weakness in the core governance arrangements as they stand.  
The governance arrangements have been under review, including the recent 
Local Government Association (LGA) review which placed particular 
emphasis on the arrangements that the Council has for legal; these are 
currently interim and short-term and it is critical to establish a permanent 
arrangement.

The LGA review and the internal review of arrangements both recognise that 
the current arrangements need to change in order to meet the needs of the 
organisation and ensure that the Council’s governance is strong. 

The role of the senior legal professional within a local authority has strong 
synergy with the statutory role of the Monitoring Officer.  The Monitoring 
Officer has a number of statutory duties and responsibilities relating to the 
Council’s Constitution and the Council which are intended to safeguard 
Members and Officers.  These include:

Page 49

Agenda Item 9



 To report to Council on matters he/she believes are, or are likely to be, 
illegal or amount to maladministration;

 To be responsible for matters relating to the conduct of Members and 
Officers, including investigations into allegations about the conduct of 
Members; and

 To be responsible for the operation of the Constitution.

It is proposed that a new role is created of Head of Legal & Governance and 
that the post is designated as the Monitoring Officer.  The proposed service 
areas are legal, democratic and elections administration; plus other 
responsibilities that align with a legal/democratic service provision such as 
data protection, freedom of information, the Council complaints process, and 
information risk among others.

The Head of Legal & Governance would be responsible for acting as the 
Council’s principal legal advisor and solicitor, and provide a comprehensive, 
professional and progressive legal advice service to the Council, with the 
support of external expertise.  The post will also bring a more robust legal 
approach to contract management and procurement.

The designation of Monitoring Officer is currently with the Democratic 
Services Manager.  This designation will continue until the new post is filled. 

The new post would be partly funded by a reduction in external expenditure 
on legal support – this would continue for expert or specialist areas of advice 
and budget provision for these remains in place.  The balance of the funding 
comes from the reinvestment of budget savings and reductions included in the 
2020-2021 budget setting and budget proposals report.

The post will be a member of the Management Team and a senior manager.  
The salary for this post has been set against the job market, although our 
specific role does not appear, we require an officer that is legally qualified and 
proven/experienced; the salary also reflects the fit with our existing structure.  
The postholder will report directly to the Chief Executive which satisfies the 
requirements of the Monitoring Officer in terms of access and reflects their 
responsibilities.

Members are recommended to approve the creation of a new post of Head of 
Legal & Governance.  The recruitment will be carried out in accordance with 
the Officer Employment Procedure Rules.

(i) Legal Implications

Section 5 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 requires the 
Council to designate one of its officers as the Monitoring Officer. This may not 
be the Head of Paid Service or the Director of Resources (Section 151 
Officer). The Council is required to provide the Monitoring Officer with such 
staff, accommodation and resources as he/she considers necessary to fulfil 
his/her legal duties. 

Page 50

Agenda Item 9



(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation aims to strengthen core governance arrangements and 
minimise the risk of challenge.

(iii) Financial Implications

The post is funded by a combination of existing budget for external legal 
advice and from savings and reductions incorporated into the 2020-2021 
budget proposals.  The salary is to be £50,000 with incremental advances to 
£53,000; the cost for 2020-2021, including on-costs, is £67,210 and the pay 
award for Chief Officers will apply.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Report Author

Director of Resources

Page 51

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL

Date of Meeting: 21st January, 2020

Reporting Officer:       Chief Executive

REPORT OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
(Reports of the meetings held on 29th October, 26th November 
and 17th December, 2019 and 14th January, 2020

Recommendations:

There were no recommendations referred to Council from the meetings held on 
29th October, 26th November and 17th December, 2019.

If necessary an addendum to this report will deal with any recommendations from 
the Planning Committee to be held on 14th January, 2020.

Delegated Decisions

The matters determined by the Planning Committee in exercise of the powers 
which have been delegated to the Committee will be detailed in the Minutes of 
the meetings noted above reproduced in Volume 3 2019/20 of the printed 
Minutes.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 53

Agenda Item 10



COUNCIL

Date of Meeting: 21st January, 2020

Reporting Officer:       Chief Executive

REPORT OF THE LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE
(Report of the meeting held 7th November and the special 
meeting held on 18th December, 2019)

Recommendations:

There were no recommendations referred to Council from the meeting held on 
7th November and the special meeting held on 18th December, 2019.

The meeting to be held on 5th December, 2019 had been cancelled.

Delegated Decisions

The matters determined by the Licensing Regulatory Committee in exercise of 
the powers which have been delegated to the Committee will be detailed in the 
Minutes of the meetings noted above reproduced in Volume 3 2019/20 of the 
printed Minutes.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 54

Agenda Item 10



COUNCIL

Date of Meeting: 21st January, 2020

Reporting Officer:       Chief Executive

REPORT OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE
(Report of the meeting held on 7th November, 2019)

Recommendations:

There were no recommendations referred to Council from the meeting held on 
7th November, 2019.

The meeting to be held on 5th December, 2019 had been cancelled.

Delegated Decisions

The matters determined by the Licensing Committee in exercise of the powers 
which have been delegated to the Committee will be detailed in the Minutes of 
the meeting noted above reproduced in Volume 3 2019/20 of the printed Minutes.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 55

Agenda Item 10



COUNCIL

Date of Meeting: 21st January, 2020

Reporting Officer:       Chief Executive

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
(Reports of the meetings held on 23rd October and 27th 
November, 2019 and 15th January, 2020

Recommendations:

The recommendations of the Executive Committee meeting held on 23rd 
October, 2019 were reported to the Extraordinary Council meeting on 12th 
November, 2019.

If necessary an addendum to this report will deal with any recommendations from 
the Executive Committee to be held on 15th January, 2020.

The following recommendations have been referred to Council:-

Executive Committee - 27th November, 2019

1.0 Housing Management Forum: Recommendations

Asset Management Strategy 2020-2025

1.1 The purpose of the Assistant Director – Housing’s report was to seek 
Members’ approval to publish and implement the Housing Department’s 
2020-2025 Asset Management Strategy.

1.2 Recommendation:-

To recommend the Council:-

1. To agree the content of the Housing Department’s 2020-2025 Asset 
Management Strategy;

2. To agree to prioritise future investments to housing related assets 
based on the results of the sustainability scoring matrix; and

3. To agree that Officers would produce a new five-year Asset 
Management Investment Plan for each of the Council’s five housing 
management areas for Members’ consideration at their meeting to be 
held on 16th January, 2020.

Page 56

Agenda Item 10



2.0 The Council Plan 2020-2024 (See Agenda Item 7)

2.1 The Corporate Support Manager reminded the Committee that the Council 
Plan had been revised to take into account updates to the Council’s 
priorities to meet the future challenges and opportunities for the Borough. 
The Council Plan 2020-2024 had been developed with input from both 
Members and Officers, to ensure the Council as a whole understands and 
strived to achieve the Council’s priority outcomes. 

 The Council Plan was a key strategic document which sets the priorities 
for the Borough and would guide decision making, including how public 
money was spent during the period 2020-2024. It sat alongside the MTFS 
and also reflected the plans and strategies of other organisations that the 
Council would work with. 

 The Council Plan sets the Council’s strategic direction for the next four 
years. It was underpinned by a performance management framework 
which would ensure that resources were targeted in the right areas to 
deliver priorities. 

 The vision of the Council was for the Borough to be a great place to live, 
work and visit.

 The vision would be achieved through three Council Plan priorities;

 Enabling our residents to live happy, healthy, productive lives. 

 Creating vibrant, safe and welcoming places where people want to live. 

 Supporting our economy to thrive and benefit all our residents.

 The Values and Behaviours together with the three priorities were also 
considered by the Committee.

 The draft Plan was yet to be finalised in terms of format and final text 
updates; the priorities and objectives were not expected to change but the 
actions may be rephrased or updated.

 The final copy of the Council Plan 2020-2024 would be circulated ahead of 
the Council meeting. A designed version would go to Full Council for 
publication along with a ‘Plan on a page’ with success measures aligned. 

 Progress and achievement of the Council’s objectives would be monitored 
through the Performance Management Framework and reported to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

2.2 Recommendation:-

 To recommend the Council to endorse the updated Council Plan for 
the period 2020-2024.

Page 57

Agenda Item 10



Delegated Decisions

The matters determined by the Executive Committee in exercise of the powers 
which have been delegated to the Committee will be detailed in the Minutes of 
the meetings noted above reproduced in Volume 3 (2019/20) of the printed 
Minutes.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 58

Agenda Item 10



COUNCIL

Date of Meeting: 21st January, 2020

Reporting Officer:       Chief Executive

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
(Report of the meeting held on 18th December, 2019)

Recommendations:

There were no recommendations referred to Council from the above meeting.

Delegated Decisions

The matters determined by the Audit Committee in exercise of the powers which 
have been delegated to the Committee will be detailed in the Minutes of the 
meetings noted above reproduced in Volume 3 (2019/20) of the printed Minutes.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 59

Agenda Item 10



COUNCIL

Date of Meeting: 21st January, 2020

Reporting Officer:       Chief Executive

REPORT OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
(Report of the meetings held on 24th October and 28th 
November, 2019)

Recommendations:

There were no recommendations referred to Council from the above meeting.

Delegated Decisions

The matters determined by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in exercise of 
the powers which have been delegated to the Committee will be detailed in the 
Minutes of the meeting noted above reproduced in Volume 3 (2019/20) of the 
printed Minutes.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 60

Agenda Item 10



COUNCIL

Date of Meeting: 21st January, 2020

Reporting Officer:      Chief Executive

Addendum 
to Agenda

Item
10(A)(4)

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
(Report of the meeting held on 15th January, 2020)

Recommendations:

The following recommendations have been referred to Council:-

1.0 Protocol for the Award of the Freedom of the Borough 
(See Agenda Item 8)

1.1 The Temporary Senior Legal Officer reported that the conferment of 
Freedom of the Borough was the highest honour that the Council could 
bestow.  To be granted Freedom of the Borough was a mark of distinction 
upon the person whom the Council wished to honour.  The Freedom itself 
carried no privilege and was purely an honour, reflecting the eminence of 
the person on whom it was conferred or as recognition of significant and 
valuable services rendered to the Borough by that person.

 Whilst there had been a number of Honorary Freedoms given by the 
Borough, the Council currently did not have any protocols governing the 
way in which the Council made such awards, and a draft had been 
proposed for that purpose.  The draft protocol was considered by the 
Committee.

1.2 Recommendations:-

To recommend the Council adopt the protocol for the award of the 
Freedom of the Borough.

2.0 Public Protection Services – Enforcement Policies

2.1 The Public Protection Manager reported that the existing enforcement 
policies had been last updated in 2014 to include reference to the 
Regulators’ Code which had come into force in April 2014.  Council had 
approved the former Environmental Health Departments enforcement 
policies in October 2014.  

Page 61

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



 It had been necessary to review and refresh the General Enforcement 
Policy for Public Protection Services and also the service specific 
enforcement policies in relation to Food Safety and Health and Safety to 
replicate the departments’ name and management, changes in the law 
and in doing so also reflect the principles of the Regulators’ Code.

2.2 Recommendations:-

To recommend the Council to approve the General Enforcement 
Policy for Public Protection Services and the specific Enforcement 
Policies for the work areas of Food Safety and Health and Safety.

3.0 Elected Members Code of Conduct – Licensing Matters

3.1 Attached to the Public Protection Manager’s report was a proposed 
Licensing Code of Conduct which set out principles to guide Members and 
Officers in determining licensing applications and making other decisions 
within the terms of reference of the Licensing Committee, Licensing Sub-
Committee and the Licensing Regulatory Committees.

 On 7th November, 2019 the Licensing Committee and Licensing 
Regulatory Committee had considered the Code of Conduct and had 
agreed the Code of Conduct would set out principles to guide Members 
and Officers and had agreed it would be good practice.  

 The Licensing Committees had a very important role to play in the life of 
the Borough; they determined licensing applications under many different 
statutory regimes from alcohol and gambling licences to taxi licences & 
street trading consents and many others.  The Committee’s decisions 
were very important to the applicants since they could affect their ability to 
earn their living and could have serious financial consequences.  
However, the role of Licensing was the protection of the public and was 
also important for the safeguarding vulnerable adults and children, its 
impact on health & safety and public safety, the local and wider community 
and competing economic interests.

 Members of the Committees should determine Licensing matters in the 
interests of the whole community of the Borough, with regard to the 
relevant legislation, policy and guidance and should not prejudge licensing 
applications nor do anything that may reasonably be taken as giving an 
indication of having prejudged licensing applications.

 Members must consider carefully whether it was right for them to 
participate in a matter before the Committee and be able to approach it 
with an open mind and consider an application on its own merits. In order 
to maintain the integrity of the licensing system, Members should be 
careful to ensure that any interests do not unduly influence their decisions.

Page 62

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



 In addition, the Licensing Code of Conduct provided guidance to Members 
on ‘pre-judgement’, political group meetings, debate & lobbying, natural 
justice, hospitality and the Council’s statutory duties. 

3.2 Recommendations:-

 To recommend the Council to approve the Licensing Code of 
Conduct and adopt it into Part 5 of the Constitution.

Delegated Decisions

The matters determined by the Executive Committee in exercise of the powers 
which have been delegated to the Committee will be detailed in the Minutes of 
the meetings noted above reproduced in Volume 3 (2019/20) of the printed 
Minutes.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 63

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	CL12NOV19

	4 LIST OF ENGAGEMENTS CARRIED OUT BY THE MAYOR AND DEPUTY MAYOR
	7 THE COUNCIL PLAN 2020-2024
	4265 BBC Council Plan 2020 v3

	8 PROTOCOL FOR THE AWARD OF THE FREEDOM OF THE BOROUGH
	Appendix 1 FreedomoftheBoroughProtocol
	Appendix 2  FoftheBoronomination form

	9 HEAD OF LEGAL & GOVERNANCE AND MONITORING OFFICER
	10 (A) TO RECEIVE REPORTS FROM THE FOLLOWING COMMITTEES AND CONSIDER RECOMMENDATIONS:-
	ADDENDUM EXEC RECS 15JAN20


